g ’(% UNITED STATES ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY
3 M g REGION Iil
% o3 ) 1650 Arch Street
& Philadelphia; Pennsylvania 19103:2029
September 7, 2017

BY CERTIFIED MAIL, RETURN RECEIPT REQUESTED
AND ELECTRONIC MAIL

‘Hamilton Hackney, Esq.

Dain, Torpy, Le Ray, Wiest & Garner, P.C.

745 Atlantic Avenue, 5" Floor

Boston, MA 02111

RE:  V/M/O Super Concrete Corporation, Docket No. CWA-03-2017-0024

Mr. Hackney:

Enclosed is a fully executed and filed Consent Agreement and Final Order (‘CAFQ™) resolving
the referenced matter. Please review the terms and conditions of the CAFO and forward to your
client.

Please feel free to call me with any questions or concerns.

Douglas Frankenthaler
Assistant Regional Counsel

Enclosures

<3 Printed on 100% recycled/recyclable paper with 100% post-conswumer fiber and process chiorine free.
Customer Service Hotline: 1-800-438-2474




BEFORE THE UNITED STATES ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY
REGION 1
1650 Arch Street
Philadelphia, Pennsylvania 19103-2029

IN THE MATTER OF:

Super Concrete Corporation
5001 Fort Totten Drive NE
Washington, DC 2001 1

Proceeding to Assess Class 1
Administrative Penalty Under
Section 309(g) of the Cléan Water Act

Docket No. CWA-03-2017-0024

Respondent CONSENT AGREEMENT

AND FINAL ORDER

CONSENT AGREEMENT AND FINAL ORDER

. PRELIMINARY STATEMENT, JURISDICTIONAL AND STATUTORY
AUTHORITY

1. This Consent Agreement and Final Order (“CAFO”) is entered into by the Director, Water

]

Protection Division, United States Environmental Protection Agency (“EPA™), Region 111
("Complainant") and Super Concrete Corporation (“Super Concrete” or “Respondent™)
pursuant to Section 309(g) of the Clean Water Act (“CWA"), 33 U.S.C. § 1319(g), and the
Consolidated Rules of Practice Governing the Administrative Assessment of Civil Penalties,
Issuance of Compliance or Corrective Action Orders, and the Revocation, Termination or
Suspension of Permits ("Consolidated Rules”), 40 C.F.R. Part 22. The parties having agreed
to settlement of violations of the Clean Water Act by Respondent, this CAFO simultaneously
commences and concludes this action pursuant to 40 C.F.R. § 22.13(b) and 22.18(b)(2) &
3).

Respondent is an owner and operator of a concrete aggregate processing facility located at
5001 Fort Totten Drive NE, Washington, DC 20011 (“Facility™).

Respondent’s Facility subject to this CAFO, is subject to. CWA National Pollutant Discharge
Elimination System (“NPDES"), Permit No. DC0000175 (the “Facility Permit™),

Complainant alleges that Respondent has failed to comply with the CWA and its NPDES
permit, including a failure to comply with all monitoring and reporting obligations of the
Facility Permit. The alleged violations of the Facility Permit are identified in Exhibit 1.
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10.

It

‘Pursuant to Section 309(2)(2)(B) of the CWA, 33 U.S.C. § 1319(g)(2)(B), as amended by the

Debt Collection Improvement-Act of 1996 (codified at 28 U.S.C. § 2461) and the subsequent

Civil Monetary Penalty Inflation Adjustment Rule, 40 C.F.R. Part 19, the Administrator of

the EPA is authorized after March 15, 2004, to issue an order réquiring compliance and/or
assessing administrative penalties against any person who has violated Section 301(a) of the
CWA by failing to obtain an NPDES permitor by discharging a pollutant into a water of the
United States without an NPDES permit issued pursuant to Section 402 in an amount not to
exceed $ 16,000 per day for each violation that occurred before November 2, 2015 and

assessed before Au gust 1, 2016 and up to $20,628 per day for each violations that occurred

after November 2, 2015 and was assessed on or after August 1, 2016 up to a total penalty
amount of $257,848.

The EPA is authorized to issue NPDES permits within the District of Columbia, and issued
the Facility Permit.

I1. FINDINGS OF FACT AND CONCLUSIONS OF LAW

Section 402 of the CWA, 33 U.S.C. § 1342, establishes the NPDES program.

Under Section 402 of the Act, 33 U.S.C. § 1342, EPA and states with EPA-approved NPDES
programs are authorized to issue permits governing the discharge of pollutants from
regulated sources.

Section 301 (a) of the Act, 33 U.S.C. § 1311(a), prohibits the discharge of any pollutant from
any point source by a person into a water of the United States except in compliance with a
permit issued under the NPDES program pursuant to Section 402 of the Act, 33 U.S.C. §
1342,

Section 502(5) of the Act, 33 U.S.C. § 1362(5) defines the term “person” as “an individual,
corporation, partnership; association, State, municipality, commission, or political
subdivision of a State, or any interstate body.”

Section 502(12) of the Act, 33 U.S.C. § 1362(12) defines the term “discharge of a pollutant”
and the term “discharge of pollutants” as “any addition of any pollutant to navigable waters
from any point source,” or “any addition of any pollutant to the waters of the contiguous
zone or the ocean from any point source other than a vessel or other floating craft.”

. Section 502(6) of the Act, 33 U.S.C. §1362(6) defines the term “pollutant” as “dredged spoil,

solid waste, incinerator residue; sewage, garbage, sewage sludge, munitions, chemical
wastes, biological materials, radioactive materials, heat, wrecked or discarded equipment,
rock, sand, cellar dirt and industrial, municipal, and agricultural waste discharged into
water.”
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13. Section 502(14) of the Act, 33 U.S.C. § 1362(14) defines the term “point source” as “any
discernible, confined and discrete conveyance, including but not limited to any pipe, ditch,
channel, tunnel, conduit, well, discrete fissure, container, rolling stock, concentrated animal
feeding operation, or vessel or other floating craft, from which pollutants are or may be
discharged.”

14. Section 502(7) of the Act, 33 U.S.C. §1362(7) defines the térm the term “navigable waters”
as “the waters of the United States, including the territorial seas.” See also 40 C.F.R. §
1222,

15. Pursuant to Section 402(b) of the Act, 33 U.S.C. § 1342(b), EPA administers the NPDES
program in the District of Columbia.

16. An NPDES Permit is required for industrial discharges, including discharges related to the
Facility. See 33 U.S.C. § 1342, 40 CF.R. § 122.21,

17. The Respondent is a “person™ as defined by Section 502(5) of the CWA, 33 U.S.C. §
1362(5), and 40 C.F.R. § 122.2.

18. Pursuant to its NPDES Permit, Respondent is authorized to discharge pollutants through
point sources into navigable waters.

19. On or about February 19, 2013, EPA inspected the Facility, and afterwards provided a copy
of EPA’s inspection report to Respondent.

20. In response to an EPA Show Cause Letter, on or about May 26, 2015, EPA and Respondent
met to discuss the alleged violations,

21. Following the May 26, 2015 meeting, EPA and Respondent had a number of follow-up
discussions and Respondent provided additional information to EPA concerning its
operations and CWA compliance at the Facility.

22. Over at least the past five years Respondent has violated the CWA and the Facility Permit by
discharging pollutants in violation of the CWA and its NPDES permit and by failing to
perform the proper monitoring and reporting requirements of the Facility Permit and the
CWA. Exhibit I to this CAFO, incorporated by reference, identifies the violations resolved
through this agreement.

28]
|95}

- Discharge of pollutants in violation of any effluent standard, prohibition or standard,
including any standard contained in an NPDES permit issued under the CWA is a violation
of Section 301(a) of the CWA, 33 U.S.C, § 1311(a), which prohibits, among other things, the
discharge of any pollutant in violation of a NPDES permit issued under Section 402 of the
Act, 33 U.S.C. § 1342, and 40 C.F.R. Part 122.
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24,

25,

26.

28.

30.

3L

Respondent’s violation of the NPDES Permits constitute violations of Section 301 of the
CWA, 33 U.S.C. § 1311, and subject Respondent to penalties not to exceed $20,628 per day
for-each violation, up to a total penalty amount of $257,848

III. CONSENT AGREEMENT AND FINAL ORDER

In‘order to resolve the violations described above, and to provide a legal framework for the
payment of a penalty, EPA and Respondent enter into this CAFO. Respondent consents to
issuance of this CAFO and agrees to undertake all actions required by its terms and
conditions. Respondent consents to the assessment of the civil penalty herein and consents to
issuance of the compliance order described herein.

Respondent neither admits nor denies the factual allegations or conclusions of law contained
in Section I, Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law. Respondent.admiits the
jurisdictional allegations contained in Section I, Preliminary Statement, Jurisdictional and
Statutory Authority, and elsewhere in this CAFQ, and waives any defenses it might have as
to jurisdiction and venue. Respondent agrees not to contest EPA’s jurisdiction to issue this
CAFO and not to contest EPA’s jurisdiction to enforce the terms of this CAFO.

- Respondent hereby expressly waives its right to a hearing, pursuant to Section 309(2)(2)(A),

33 U.S.C. § 1319(2)(2)(A), on any issue of law or fact in this matter and consents to issuance
of this CAFO without adjudication, and ‘waives its right to appeal this final order pursuant to
Section 309(g)(8)(A), 33 U.S.C. § 1319(2)(8)(A).

This CAFO addresses and settles all civil and administrative claims for CWA violations
identified in this CAFQ,

. Each party to this action shall pay its own costs and attorney fees.

The provisions of this CAFO shall be binding upon the Respondent, and its officers,
principals, directors, successors and assigns.

The parties agree that settlement of this maltter prior to the initiation of litigation is in the
public interest and that entry of this CAFO is the most appropriate means of resolving this
matter.

. Pursuant to Section 309(g)(4) of the Act, 33 U.S.C. § 1319 (g)(4), and 40 C.F.R. § 22.45(b),

EPA is providing public notice and an opportunity to comment on the CAFO before issuing
the Final Order. In addition, EPA has consulted with the District of Columbia regarding this
action, and will mail a copy of this document to the appropriate DC official.

. Based on the foregoing FINDINGS, and having taken into.account the factors listed in

Section 309(d) of the CWA, 33 U.S.C. § 1319(d), including but not limited to, the nature,
circumstances, extent and gravity of the violation, the Respondent's knowledge, culpability
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and history-of violations, the economic benefit to Respondent, the ability of Respondent to
pay the penalty, and other such matters as justice may require, the administrative record; and
under the authority of Section 309(g)(2)(A) of the CWA, 33 U.S.C. § 1319(2)(2)(A), EPA
HEREBY ORDERS AND RESPONDENT HEREBY CONSENTS:

34. Within thirty (30) days of the effective date of this ORDER, Respondent shall pay a civil
penalty of twenty seven thousand two hundred and fifty dollars ($27,250.00) for the
violations cited herein. This does not constitute a démand as that term is defined in the Equal
Access to Justice Act, 28 U.S.C. § 2412. Penalty payment shall be made according to the
following specifications:

a. The payment shall.reference Respondent’s name, address and docket number, be made in
U.S. dollars by mioney order, cashier's or certified check made payable to the "Treasurer,
United States of America”, wire transfer, ACH, or on line, and delivered as follows:

i. If by money order, cashier’s or certified check sent by U.S. postal service mail:

U.S. Environmental Protection Agency
Fines and Penalties

Cincinnati Finance Center

P.O. Box 979077

St. Louis, MO 63197 9000

Contact: Bryson Lehman 513-487-2123

il. If by money order, cashier's or certified check sent by private commercial overnight
delivery service:

U.S. Bank

Government Lockbox 979077
U.S. EPA, Fines & Penalties
1005.Convention Plaza

Mail Station SL. MO C2 GL
St. Louis, MO 63101

Contact: 314-418-1028
iii. All payments made by check in any currency drawn on banks with no USA branches
shall be addressed for delivery to:

Cincinnati Finance
US EPA, MS NWD'
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26 W. M.L. King Drive
Cmcmtmu -OH 45268 0001

iv. If by electronic wire transfer:

Federal Reserve Bank of New York
ABA =021030004

Account No. = 68010727

SWIFT address = FRNYUS33

33 Liberty Street

New York, NY 10045

Ficld Tag 4200 of the Fedwire message should read:
“D 68010727 Environmental Protection Agency”

v. Ifby ACH (also known as REX or remittance express):
US Treasury REX / Cashlink ACH Receiver
ABA =051036706
Account No.: 310006, Environmental Protection Agency
CTX Format Transaction Code 22 Checking
Physical location of U.S. Treasury facility:
5700 Rivertech Court
Riverdale, MD 20737 _
Contact: Jesse White 301 887 6548 or REX, 1 866234 5681
vi. On Line Payment Option:
WWW.PAY.GOV/PAYGOV
Enter sfo 1.1 in the search field. Open and complete the form,
vii: Additional payment guidance is available at:

http://www.epa.gov/ocfo/ﬁnserviccs/make'_av_p‘z_xy‘mem.hm1

b. A copy of the check or money order or other proof of payment submitted in fulfillment of
the penalty payment requirements of this order shall be sent to the following:

U.S. Envirenmental Protection Agency
Ruglondl Hearing Clerk (3RC00)
1650 Arch Street
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35.

36.

38.

Philadelphia, Pennsylvania 19103-2029
and

Mr. Douglas Frankenthaler (3RC20)
Assistant Regional Counsel

U.S. EPA Region 111

1650 Arch Street

Philadelphia, PA 19103-2029

¢. A transmittal message identifying the case name and docket number identified above shall
accompany the remittance and copies of the check or transfer instrument.

Within thirty (30) days of the effective date of this ORDER, Respondent agrees to certify, in
writing to EPA pursuant to Paragraphs 39 and 40 that it is operating in full compliance with its
NPDES Permit, and that it is complying with all relevant provisions of the CWA at the

Facility. Such certification will be submitted to EPA pursuant to the notification provisions of
this CAFO.

‘Upon the effective date of this ORDER, Respondent has implemented and has agreed to

continue to implement the “Standard Ope: ating Procedure for NPDES Permit Compliance”
or SOP, a compendium of documents which was prepared by Respondent, agreed upon by
EPA and Respondent, and which is identified in Exhibit 2 hereto and incorporated by
reference into this CAFO.

- To the extent that the SOP is modified within three hundred and sixty-five (365) days of the

effective date of this CAFO, Respondent agrees that a copy of such modified SOP will be
submitted to EPA along with a document noting the modifications made pursuant to the
notification and submission provisions of this CAFO.

Failure to pay the penalty assessed by this ORDER after its effective date subjects the
Respondent to a collection action under Section 309(2)(9) of the CWA, 33 US.C. §

1319(g)(9). The validity, amount and appropriateness of the penalty are not subject to review

in a collection proceeding. See 15U.S.C. § 2615(a)(4)(A). Pursuant to 31 U.S.C. § 3717, EPA
is entitled to assess interest on unpaid penalties, and a charge to cover the cost of processing
and handling a delinquent claim. Interest will begin to accrue on this civil penalty if it is not
paid within fifteen days of the date due. Interest will be assessed at the rate of the United
States Treasury tax and loan rate. 40 C.F.R. § 13.11. In addition, a quarterly nonpayment
penalty charge may be assessed on any delinquent debt pursuant to Section 309(g)(9) of the
CWA, 33 US.C. § 1319(g)(9). In addition, EPA will assess a $15.00 administrative handling
charge for the administrative handling charge for administrative costs for the first 30 day
period after the payment is due-and an additional $15.00 for each subsequent 30 days the
penalty remains due.
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39. All notifications and submissions required by this CAFO, shall be made to:

Mr. Douglas Frankenthaler (3RC20)
Assislant Regional Counsel

U.S. EPA Region [11

1650 Arch: Street

Philadelphia, PA 19103-2029
Telephone: (215) 814-2472

40. All submissions provided pursuant to this Order shall be signed by Respondents and shall

41.

44,

include the following certification:

“T certify that the information contained in or accompanying this submission is true,
accurate and complete. 1 am aware that there are significant penalties for submitting
false information, including the possibility of fine and imprisonment for knowing
violations."

IV. GENERAL PROVISIONS

 This CAFO shall not relieve Respondents of its obligation to comply with all applicable

provisions of federal, state or local law and ordinance, nor shall it be construed to be a ruli ing

on, ordetermination of, any issue related to any federal, state or local permit. This CAFO
does not constitute a waiver, suspension or modification of the requirements of the CWA.

. This CAFO resolves only the civil claims for the specific violations alleged herein, EPA

reserves the right to commence action against any person, including Respondent, in response

to any condition which EPA determines tay present an imminent and substantial

endangerment to the public health, public welfare, or the environment. In addition, this
settlement is subject to all limitations on the scope of resolution-and to the reservation of
rights set forth in Section 22.18(c) of the Consolidated Rules of Practice. Further, EPA
reserves any rights and remedies available to it under the Clean Water Act, 33 U.S.C. §§ 301
et seq., the regulations promulgated there under, and any other federal laws or regulations for
which EPA has jurisdiction, to enforce the provisions of this CAFO, following its filing with
the Regional Hearing Clerk.

. Nothing in this CAFO shall be construed as prohibiting, altering or in any way eliminating

the ability of EPA to seek any other remedies or sanctions available by virtue of
Respondent’s violations of this CAFO or of the statutes and regulations upon which this
CAFO is based or for Respondent’s violation of any applicable provision of law.,

The penalty described above, shall represent civil penalties assessed by EPA and shall not be
deductible for purposes of Federal taxes.
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45.

46.

47.

48.

This CAFQ is conditioned upon the accuracy of the Respondent’s representations to EPA,
EPA reserves the right to institute a new and/or separate action should Respondents fail to
comply with the terms of this CAFO. That right shall be in addition to all other rights and
causes of action, civil or ¢riminal, the EPA may have under law or equity in such event.

The undersigned representative of Respondent certifies that he o she is fully authorized by
the party represented to enter into the terms and conditions of this CAFO and to execute and
legally bind Respondent to it.

All of the terms and conditions of this CAFO together comprise one agreement, and each of
the terms-and conditions is in consideration of all of the other terms and conditions. In the
event that this CAFO, or one or more of its terms-and conditions, is held invalid, or is not
executed by all of the signatories in identical form, or is not approved in such identical form
by the Regional Administrator or his designee, then the entire CAFO shall be null and void.

V. EFFECTIVE DATE

This CAFO will be issued after a forty (40) day comment period, execution by an authorized
representative of the EPA and filing with the regional hearing clerk. It will become final and
effective 30 days afterissuance.

FOR RESPONDENT % <ijp%ion:
By: D

Name: < TePdHeN  WARD
Title: VIE  PREVWAENT
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SO ORDERED in Super Concrete Corporation, Dkt. No. CWA-03-2017-0024, pursuant to 33
US.C. § 1319(g) and 40 C.E.R. Pagt 22,
this 7 day of ")W/‘%?’f e 2017

el BBz

Dominique Lueckenhoff, -Acting Dirdctor
Water Protection Division




Date or Week

Exhibit 1

[ Parameter

Dcscrip[ivm‘; N

IR - Flow. TSS. Oil and Grease, ! Monitoring and Repurtm},’
g , BOD. pli ; ,‘
“Week o 673/12 U ph : Monitoring and Reporting h
i | =
T6412 - Flow, T'SS, @il and Grease. - Monitoring and Reporting
652 Flow. TSS. Oil and Grease. Monitoring and Reporting
FOr13) 2 Flow, TSS. Oil and Grease, ! Monitoring and Reporting
BOD. pH -
7720012 Flow. TSS. Oil and Grease. Monitoring and Reporting |
- Flow, TSS, Oil and Grease. Monitoring and Reporting
BOD | | , ]
- Flow, TSS, Oil and Grease. Monitoring and Reporting i
I BOD S o
8713712 ~ Flow, TSS, Oil and Girease, ‘l\"kmimring and Reporting
BOD. pl e
L9/11/13 TSS Incorrect Reporting on DMR |
971212 1 Flow, 188, Oil and Grease, Monitoring and Reporting !
| BOD . o ?
| 3574 188 o | Pormit Limit Exceedance |
! 17515 ss Permit Limit Exceedance *




Exhibit 2

Standard Operating Procedure for NPDES Permit Com pliance



MAR Water Sampling Training Checklist

Site, S Oate: . Trainer;

Participants:

Lo Intrgduction - Explain why we are making lhe changes:
Meerngs with VADEQ inspectors. - suggestey updates to prograrn
Discussions wah Phase 1 ats resulied n additional quality control {QCY i .our sampling program 1o
el the quahty of ocur samples and sample resylis

<. Envoy Sie Procedure
Show them how to accoss the Favoysite procedure.

Provide a‘line by line discussion -- Emphasize the irmporiance of knowing their spacific NPDES
tenis and repoerting of exeeedances,
Steess that if outtalls are added or deleted frum a site, Lisa Huot any | reed to know betore

any changes are made or any new outfall 1s canstructed (this applies pEmardy 1o sand ang
‘gravei mines)

Las

Water Sampling Procedure (the how to take a sample and do a pH test instructions).
5 Reassure them 15 not as complex or tough as it fooks. Cover everything on the sheet.
Stress the need to comply wrt‘n'-hold‘mg times and temperatures. Make note if the site(s) wiil
use o rifrigerater to store samples or put thém straight Lo a cooler,
Show them the new thermometers and explan how Lhe calibration certificates will ve
documented. Explain thermometers will be replaced annually for testing and fridge and that
there is an action plan entared in for thew sité so they can catl meto order a new
Ihermometer before the old aie Expires

Chieck the buffers they have en hand to make sure they are not expired and restock ag
Heeddd. Show them where the ot mumibier ang expration-dates are,

Snow them sample labels and Integrity seals,
Hewiew gxactly Bow to propery complete a chain-of custedy form
Explam how to abtain sample betttes ang rogiers.

+oowaler Testing Log Book ,
Roview thept teslaig log form ang givethem their new:pooks.
inflract them 10 archive ard keey their.old water testing log books in the site's
Loveranmerital Fifes. Make a note an where this 15 located

5. MHands-on Training - Go out to the outfall and have each person physically complete;
Properly codecting water samples,
Doing a pH test - make sure they understand how aperate device
Sels tp a Gaffer solution and the-cup of lap water for rinsing tip the probe tip,
Krows Dove 10 take a calibration reading 4nu how to take & measirernent fe.q. what buttong
10 pust and the techmeue - 2 minutes swirfed with probe and thermometer in Huffer packet)
Stoomng-a pi mater (keep bull wel and vertical in a coffee mug or hanging on a waill)
Emphasize that if a buld dries out, they must sgak the up in tap water for 3t least 30
minutes belore trying to do a cahibration and test a sample,
Patkaging samples for shipping
Fdiing out labets and cham of custordy

6. Duemonstraton of Compelency ] o
Review the new Demionstration of Comperency-ford
Gbserve each person comptelc four full 5015 of pHcalibealions with fresh warer sg&msics each vme.
Complete the Cortiication of {ndal Competence form. Maké a copy for 1he site Environmental Fiie and
yotuen the otgnal 1o Grednbied aleng with s site trineming cheekls:

TR T DY Sk
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version 3.1, May. 7, 2013, SIH

Aggregate Industries Mid-Atlantic Region

Water Sampling Methods

The following procedure getails how water samples are collected and tested and/cr ‘
subimitted for analysis in grder to.comply with National pollutant Discharge glimination
System {NPDES) permuts.

Operaxional'.pe’rs,onnel are responsibievf.o_r quahity of water discharged from their facihties
and shall-ensure that discharged water meets 1ocal, state a’_n‘d federal requirements. The
parameters a sile must test and the frequency are specfied in the sile water permit.

Site managers. and Site EnviK nental Represeatatives ars: requured 100 sad the site water
equirements and dischargg LS.

discharge permit and be Sarniliar,

Exceedances

1t a sample is outside of comphance limits then ynmediate measures faust. be undertaken ta
halt discharge (i possible) and correct the problem. Continued discharge of non-compliant
waters, without mitigation efforts is @ serious permit violation.

Operational personnel must notify the Environmental Department as soon as possible 10
feport the problem. The environmental department shall notify appropriate agenges 10
arcordance with permit FEQUIremants. The ﬁnyironmanlal Department shall advise and
assist operational personnel on mitigation efforls. additignal waler samples will likely be
roqoraa

water Tester Demonstration of Capability
All personne! responsiblie far water testing rmust perform.an initial Demonstration of
Capability before the Regional Environmental Advisor or other designated qualified

ndividual. Signed Certifications must be recorded in Envoy and kept with the water
sampling logs,

sampling Frequency

all samples shall be collected at the treque: te discharge pet it requires.
tor monthiy or quarterly sampling, samples should be collected in the first week of a month
(if discharge occurs) Lo allow return of lab resuits and retesting within the same month if
there are problems. If discharge 1s intermittent, samples shall be collected during the first
day of flow,



Version 3.1, May, 7, 2013, STH
Sampling Parameters

1. Totai suspended Solids:

=83

Materials:
Twor bebier plastic hotlles, cooler of e, labels; and Chain~of~Cqstociy Form

Procedtres:

1. Once sampling event has been delermined, schedule pick-up with the labaratory.
Samiple must get 1o the fab and be analyzed within 7 days of collection.

Have a-cooler with.ai ice balh ready for holding and shipping the samples.

v

3. Ensure the discharging waler is representative for normal discharging conditions.

AUt outfall, rinse bottls three times with ftowing water before coltecling the
sampie,

S. Hold the rinsed bottle al a cross sechion of the outlall and collect at least 1-liter

for the sample,
0. Repeat Steps 4-5 with the second bottle, Label tug botile "QC" and the autrall
number. I the sie has multiple outfalls anly one outfall needs to have a repeast
QC sample. '
Labeled the bottles with the sample Lo be tested, sample number, dale, and. tire
of samiple. Pt mntegrity tape evoer can.
Flace the boltles in the conler dnd prepdare cooler for shupprag e retrigerated.
Sample riust be chilled to:-between q G399 F but above 0 C.(32 F).
£ demplete the Ehain-of-Custody and affix 1t o e canler to be shippey along
with thesample.  11is farns includes: name of sampler, me/date sampled,
maierial sampled, {ocation 10, and the date/time the sample is reteased to
latoratory.

~3

e

= {0y

2. Settleable Solids:;

Do not collect samples on a Friday as they must be analyzed within 48 hrs,

Materials:
e Dlater plastic bottles, cogler of g labels, Cham=of-Cuslody Form

Procedures:

oo Onge samping event has veen détermined, schedule pPrek-up with the labaratory,
Sample must gel Lo the lab and be tested within 48 hours of collection,

2. Have a cooler with an ice-bath ready for nolding and shipping the samples

3. Ensure the. discharging water is representative for normal discharging conditions,

AL the oullall, rinse boltle thres times with flowing water heforp collecting
sample,

S Hold the rinsed boltle at o cross section of the outfall and collect at least 1- Lo
for the sample,

. Repeat Steps -5l Ihg suttnd bottle,

70 babeled theboltes valh the samiple 1o be tesled, sample numper, date, and Linvwe

ol sample. Pyt nt CGrIty Lape over cap.

Place the bottles m the cooler and prepare covier for shupping,

Sample must te chillad 1o belveeen 4 ‘€ {39 'F) butl above G- (32 “F),

cemplete the Chaimn-of -Custody and affix it 1o the coeler Lo be shipped alon,g vl by

thesample. This farm includes, rame of sampler, time/date sampled, materal

sampled. location 1D, and the date/time the sample 1s released o laboratory.

s

o



version 3.1, May. 7. 2033, S1n

3. pH:

iRuference! standord Methods A500 R 220 Ed 201 1)

Materials:

Tester

pouches of Bulfer Solution 4, 7, and 10 {you will feed prt 7 from o different lots)
Thermometer with certificate of calibration

Spray bolthe with distidied or tap water o

Cloan contanner for samole collgction {butkel, cufy, bottle]

[als]

procedures:

Visually inspect slectrode Lo engure proper working conditions {no chicnde
1‘;rc~cxpt,f_am,,,s;crmc!'n;-:s,. detenoralien, ele.)

Cahibrate the pHtester gsing guifer Sotutions 4, 7, and 10, Results should be

3

i

VO

1 units of known value, sample musl be measured within 15 minutes of

cobaction ime

Hemave cap trom pH tester

Press OnfOH bultonlo switch lester on

Open pauch of pH 4 Bufter mserl a thermometer, and. gip tne pH tester directly in
pouch. aboul 2-3 om.

Press the CAL bulton on the tester to enter the calibratian mode, The 'CAL" indwcatss
will b shown ofrthe screen. Th upper drspiay wilt show the measured reading
based ur the last calibratian while the Jower display will indicate the pH stangarad
puffer solution: _

Allow 2 minutes for the tester reading (o stabiiize before pressing the HOLD/ENT to
confirm the first calibrabion point. The upper display wil be cabbrated to thé pH
standard buffer solution and the lower display will then be toggling in belween
readings of the next pH standaid butfer solution. '

fecord results of temperature and pH reading on data collection sheet.,

Rinse the clectrode with water from theupray botile. Repeat with pH 7.
rinse the electrode with water from the spray bottle Repeat with pH10:

Test Sample:

.

At-the out_\‘all; ringe the collection comainer thrge hirmes vt fluwing water betore
coliecling sample.
Collect ‘a sample and the g thie eleclrode about -3 m it the water, Gently swir}

he sample while the prote is in the water.

Once the pH reading. has stabihzed, press the HOLDZENT bottom o freeze the
reading.

Eer the pr reading on to the data sneet.

Take a ternperature reading of the sample using the thermaometer. Once the
temperature has stabilized, enters it on the data collection sheel.

tinse probe andtesl probe accurary by testing pH 7.0 buffer again, You must st !

740

SGIILoN with ;1"gaj_{g;:;gm,vldq;,-;_1;1_(_1_»]};5:; (hah the first test, TEyou donot get'a readiog

wittin pH 6.9 and pH 7 1 repeat the entire calibratiot process, it you still do not geta
reading withiiy the range, Lheri is.a problem with the meter. Contact the pnviroamenta
mapartmernt for a replacement

for

tho.

quahity contrdd nirposes Repeat pH test with a second sample collected from
same outfail-collected al least 16 minutes alter the Lirst sample. This . second

samipie should be recorded-as Qe plus the outfall aumber inthe log book. if

the
sile

oitiz has mulliple putfally, this QC test 15 anly required far one outfall at the

Vversion 3.1, May. 7, 2013, S1H



inches of water in
the cap of the tester for storage. The electrode must remain moist while not
inuse, PH Probids should be stored vertically, not on thair sides, to ensure the
Brobe stays wet A bit of spoige or @ cotlon ball can be placed in the cap to help
CNSUIE Ry mnist .

SoORinse the electrode viln water from the spray bottle and put 0.5

4. Oiland Grease:

Materials:
Clean container for sampte colection (bucket, cup, boltle)
Three I-Liter glass vottles pre-packod with preservative proviged by Laboratory

Procedures;
Lo Once sampling ¢évent has been determined, schedule pick-up with the lab.
Sarmpie myust be tesled within 28 days of collection.

Have o cocler with an ice hath ready for holding and shipping the samples.
3 Ensure the discharging water s representative for normat discharging conditions,

b

4 HOl glass lab botties at.a Cross section of the outfall and collect sampile without
splashing out the preservative. Do not.use a cup or bucket to collect the sampie -
Sample must go directly from the outfall into the glass lab bottle.

2. Labeled the botties with the sample to be tested, sample number, date, and time
of sample. Put integrity tape over cap. '

G Place the bottles i the cooler and prepare cooler for shpping.

7. Sample must be chitled to between 4 "C (39 °F) but above 0 “C (32 *FY.

8. Complete the Cham-o(-Custody and affix it to the cooler to be shipped along with

the sample. This form meludes, name of sarripier; imé/date sampled, material
sampled, location [, and thedate/lime the sample.is released to laboratory.,

5. Bio!ogigai Oxygen Demandy

Do not collect samples on Monday mornings or-Fridays., These samples require 3 5
day incubation period and can not be tested on the weekends,

Materials:
Two 1-Liter plastic botties, Cooler ofice, Chaifrr-of-Custody Form

Procedures;

T Qoce sampling event has been determined, schegule pick-up with the Lab.

<. Sampie must be sent o the 13k mmediately so lesting can be started within 48

hours of coilection

Hayve a cooler with-an ice bath ready Tor liolding and shipping the samples.

Ensure the discharging water is representative for nprmal discharging conditions,

At the outfall, rinse boltle threé times. with flowing waler before collecting

samiple, v

G. Hold the nnsed Lotlle ol i cross section of the outfall and collecl at least 1-hter
for the sample.

7 Repest Steps 4-5 with the second bottle, ,

B taheled the bottles with the sampic to be tested, sample number, date, and tune
of sample. Pul integrity tape aver cap.

0 Flage the botties in the coater angd prepare cooler for shippmg.

i Sample must be chilled to between 4 °C {39 °F) but above 0 °C {32 “F).

P Complete the Chain-of - Custady and affix it to the cooler to be slupped atong
with the sample This form ircludes, name of sampler, imesdate sampled,
mialeral sarmpled, location 10, and the date/ume the sampleis released Lo
laboratory

v gu sy

Version 3.1, May. 7, 2013, STM



6. Total Recoverable Iron

Materials:

Chizan contaner for sample cotlection (i)uc‘xc_\, cuy, bottie) ‘ )
Ters 250 mi HEOPE plastc bottlns pre: packed willy fitrie acd-{50% cancentration)
proeservative provided by Laboralory

Safety Note: Open battiein a well-ventiloted area. i bowtle nas been stgred for more
(har a month you may rnouce yellowing of the plastic and a sMmpky vapor ceming from the
pottle when opened - no.not inhale the fumes as they are COrrOsive.

procedures:

¥, Once sampling event has been detrzml_med, schecu(e pick-up with the lab.
sample must be tested Within 6 months of collection.

2. Ensure the discharging water is. represeritative for normal.discharging conditions.

5 wear goggles and acid prool gloves when collecting the sampie.

4 iold lab bottles at a cross section of the putfall Aid collect sample without

splashing ‘put the preservative Do not use a fup or bucket 10 collect the sample

Sample must go directly from the outfall into the plasticiab bottie;

Labeled the bottles with the sample (o be tested, sample number, date, and lime

of sample, Pul integrity Lapy over <ap.

6. Bottles do not regure coaling, but they can be placed in the cooler viith the other
sample bottles for shipping.

7 Complete the Chain-of-Custody and affix 11 to the cooler to be shipped along with
\ne sample. This form includes, name of sampler, time/date sampled, material
satnpled, Jocation 10, and the gate/ume the sample is released to-faboratory.

W

4. Total Petroleum Hydrocarbons (TPH):

Materials:
Clean container for spmple collection {butkel, cup, botile)
Two ) -Liter amber glass bottles

Procedures:

1. Once sampling event has been determined, schedule pick-up with the lab.
Sample must be tested within 7 days of collection.

2 mave a cooler with anice bath ready for holding and shipping the sampies

3 gnsure the discharging waler i5 representative for narmal hscharging conditions.

4 riold glass lab bottles at A Cross section of the outfall and collect sample without
sptashing out the pregervative, Do nol use a cup or pucket to collect the sample -
Sample must go directly from the outfall into-the glass lab bottle.

5 yabeled the botties with thessampleto be rested, sarmple number, date, ang hing:
of sampte. Pul integrity tapeé over cap.

& Plage thié bottles in the cooler and prepare cooler-forsmpping: »

7 Sample must be chilled 1o between 4 T (29 F) but above 0 G2 TFy,

s Compiete the Chan-af-Custedy and aflix 1L to the conler Lo be shipped along with
the sample. THis form mgcludes, Name of sampler, tirne/date sampled, material
sampled, focation 1 and the date/tune ihe sample 15 relgased 1O laboratory.

version 3.1, May. 7, 2013, 51IH



Thermometer Note: All thermometers must be NIST traceable with a current certificate
{certficates are gond for one yearonly). Label thermometer or water testing log book wills
the cortificate expiration dale. Certificates must be filed with the water testing log books.
Raily lh‘e.".,K;Q:q!,it,s:z!lr.zwzri,ts?!,Q;ﬁx)ﬂartmwu,,fgt;..;.)»mralas;;emeru, befare the cerufication expires.
Buffer Solution Note: Buffér solutions should be storig mn.doors and protected from
excessive-heal or freezing. Buller solutions should not be used if they are past thesr
exprration date as marked on the box.

Refrigeration Note: I samples arg keptin a refngerator far any penod of tme the
relnigerator must be equipped with an NIST certified thetmometer with a current certificato.
The temperature reading must be take-and recorded i {he log book when the samples are
ploced in the refrigerator and when they are removed. -

Flow Measurement Note: Flow can be measured by: 1) Recording the pumip capacity
(e.g gallons per minute) also record the number of hours the pumps ran that day to get the
lotal discharge; 2) Recording the Ume it lakes to il a known volume (e.g. gallons per
rnute); 3) Using a How meter; 4) Olher method approved by the Environmental
Department far special circumstancas,

Record Keeping and Reparting:

- The Sde anronnugnl.ﬁ;_l Representative, or other person approved for water sampling
oy the Environmental Depdrtment, myst keep alogbook of the sampling date. and
time, pH cahibrations, and pH readings and sample temperature,

~  The water samphng log book must be Kept on-site and availaole for nspection for at
least five (8) years.

- Laboratory testing resulls are sent Lo the site representacive and the Environmental
Department. Results must be reviewed by each upon receipt Lo determing if

parameters do or do nat pxceed permit timits, If there is.an exceedance, prompt
notification ahd reporting to regulatory authorties is reguired

» The Envirunmental Department shait track water analysis and results for all facinties
Covered undera NPRDES permit,

- The Envuronmental Department shat prepare the Discharge Meonitoring Reports and
forward to the approprate agencies.,



Status: Published version: 3.3

Categories: Environment

Required Ior»’these*Roiesz RMC Plant Mgr. Site Represent'ahv‘eEnwonmam; Water Samgpler
Required for Work in these Areas: _

Distributed to these people in Dashboard/Documents: Regional Envirgnmental Advisor

N e i 4 b DT SR

Details
Fort Totten Water sampling Procedure

Under the Fort Totten NPDES Permil DCOOND175, water testing and monthly Discharge Monitoring Reports
(DMRs) are tequired. DMR reporting intervals are from the b of the preceding month to the 5th of the current
menth {for example, all samples collected from March 8th to April 5th are to be submitted for the March DMR
report). All Water Testing Log pages for that interval are to be submitted to the regional Environmental AGVISOT.
DMR reports are 10 be submitted to EPA and ihe DC DOE by the 1511 of the following month,

Outfall: The site has one achive outfall - 0042
Frequency of Testing: Water samples must be collected aach day that a discharge OGCUrs.

parameters: Flow {measured). Monlhly Avg and Datly Max (gpm- galions.per minute)
Daiy Total Gallons Discharged Needed lo calculate TSS loadings

pH Limit B 0.8.5 Standard Units {8U)

Total Suspended Solids (TSS) Limit’ Corncentration Avg 234 mg/l Max 46 B mg/
Loading Avg 33 Ibs /day Max 66 ibs rday

Oil & Grease Limit: Avg. 10 mg/l Max 15 mgfl

BOD -no limil, justmeasure

Follow the attached Water sampling Procedure for collecting, testing, packaging, shipping and
documenting water samples. On-stte and laboratory testing procedures must conform to 40 CFR Part 136
and subsequent updates

Any indivigual collecting waler samples for DMR reporling purposes must perform and complete Water Tester
Dermonstration of Gapability training.

Laboratory Report Review: Laboralory analyses are conducted by Phase Separation Sciences. The
laboratory will email analytical resuits to the site Water Sampler and to the regional Environmental Adviser
Reports areto be reviewed upon recept to verify that lest results for T8S. BOD and Oil & Grease are within
permit kmits

Excecdances

If a sample s outside of comphance limits an-ine pH of TSS meter readings) ensute the diverter valve 1s
rezrculating the water back into the water treatment unit pits Continued cischarge of non-comphant valers
snthout mtigation efforts is 8 serious permit viotation 1f a laboratory repon 1§ returnad with an analytical
parameter outside of petmt hnwts (TSS. Ol & Grease) halt further off-site discharges until a complete



mspection and repair of the frestment unit and/or meters is completed, Document repairsin the Daily
Environmental Log

Operational persorine! must notify the Environmental ‘Department as soon as possible to report the problem
The Envronmental Depariment shall notify appropriate agencies in accordance with permil requirements The
Envitonmental Department shall advise and assisi operational personnel on mitigalion efforts  Additional water

samples will ikely be required

Other Restrictions: Water shali not be discharged in amounts or combinations that do any of the followning

1 Has material that settles out to form objectionable deposits:

2 Has floating debris, scum, oil or other matter that creates & hilisance,

3. Produces objectionable odor, color, taste or turbidity;

4 Causes injury to, is toxic 1. or produces adverse physiological or behavioral changes:in.-humans, plants or
anirmals,

& Produces undesirable or nuisance aquatic life or-results in the dominance of nuisance species, or

6 Impairs the biotogical community that nalurally oceurs in the waters or depends upon the waters for s

survival and propagation

Additional Reporting: The Environmental Departmem shall subrit an annual summary of'the DMR dala to
US EPA Region til and the NOAA National Marine Fisheries Service by February 15th of each year

Record Retention: Water Testing Logs. laboratory analylical rgsults, flow records. and treatment unit
calibration and mamtenance records must be retained for a minimium of §.years per Aggregate Industries

policy

References (3)

”‘Wmer Sampler tnitia] Demonstration of Comphance

Y Waler Sampling Procadure ver 3.0 9-08

¥ Water Testing Log Form

Site: MA-Fort Totten RMC

Created: 19-May-2015 09:58 by Sharon HOGAN
Last Updated: 19-May-2015 10:52 by Sharon HOGAN




Categories: Environment
Required for these Roles: Ragio,nal Enviconmental Advisor, RMC Ops Mgr. RMC Plant Mdr, Site
Representative Environment, Water Sampler

— s e it £ TR T et ma e A B A

This procedure is to be used to prepare the site to manage excess water, particularly whern heavy rains
or hurricanes are forecast that could require handling of large amounts of storm water on site that may
test the site's storm water containment capacity.

Objective:
«  Ensure no untreated process waleris discharged from the site
« Ensure water does not overtop the perimeter containment wall

Procedures!:

1 Routine Water Management - Rain water runoff from the Fort Tollen silg 15 to be coligcted by gravity flow
or pumping in washpits, sediment 11aps. cistern, water storage pasin, waler storage pits and the lower yard
This allows harvesting of the ram water for plant and site operations such as truck washing and rnnsing. plant
water and to fill the water truck for dust suppressxon

yWaler levels n sile catchements and lower yard are: 10 be’momtoreddaﬂy-_-bya prant Manager and/or Area
Manager \f water levels are within two feet of the top of the perimeter wall in {he southeast corner. wealher
forecasts and expected waler consumption shalt be monitored daily to determine if waler treaiment and
discharge s needed to maintain the minimum freeboard. :

Minimum Freeboard: The water level in the lower yard shall be kept at least one foot below the top ot the
perimeter retaining wall in the south gast corner (excep! under active huticane condilions - see step 3
below)

» Pre-Storm Management - When heavy rains of hurficanes are {orecastto potentially impact-the site,
\mmediate steps are to be 1aken o ensure that the washpits, sedimentiraps. cistern, water storage basin,
water storage pits and the lower yard flood area have:maxinum storage capacity to collect the expected
volume of storm water These steps include

« Treatment and discharge of water stored on site 1o increase water storage capacily
. Removal of sediment and clean out of pits and basins to maxinize waler storage capacity.

+ Inspecton and testing of water treatment unts, topping off of the acid treatment tanks, and laying n30-
gallon acid drums and replacement filtration bags for the packup unit prior o the storm

. Arrangements for around-the-clock staffing of the lacdity tO mariage the expected storm water and
operate the rreatment units £ it is necessary and sale 1o do so

. Prepanng the generatof 16 serve as.a back up power supply to the treatiment units.
. Notes on storm preparation activity should be recorded in the Daily Inspection Log

. Coordinate with the Epuironmental Depantmeanton preparations and site siatus



3 Storm Management - During the storm. moniter water levels i siorage areas and adjust activiies ag
needed to control the situation without jeopardizing worker safety Options'include
* Conlinuous 24-hour treatment and discharge of storm water

+  Use of the backup treatment unit for additional treatmest capaciy.

Providing hook up to the on-site generalor to run treatment units and pumps if the power goes out

* Monitoring water levels in the lower yard
« -Slorage of excess water in muxer truck drums

s Conslruction of temporary dikes made of waste concrele and solids o block storage bays to contan
excess water.

4 Dealing with Uncontroiled Discharges - If storm ntensity or worker safety protection results ina concern
that'continued rainfall will cause the lower yard containment wall o overtop, the following measures are to bs

laken

Notify the regional VPIGM and the Environmental Advisor as soon as possible so that EPA Region Ifi
ard DG Department of Environmental Protection can be alerted

*

i1t is safe and possible to do so. collect a waler sample of the overflow water for pH testing and send

samples lo the laboratory for the standard analylical tests:

» W an overtopping event oceurs, document the onset and cessation of the ‘event and an estimale of the
{otal gallons released

« Conlinue treating and discharging water through the outfali if-possible 1o lower waler levels as quickly
as possible

«  Document actions taken before; during and after the incident.and work with the Environmental

Department on reporting o the regulatory agencies.

Site: MA-Fort Totten RMC

Owner:: Sharon HOGAN
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

[ hereby certify that the original and one copy of the foregoing Consent Agreement and
Final Order (“CAFO”), resolving /M/O Super Concrete Corporation, Docket No. CWA-03-
2017-0024, has been filed with the EPA Region III Regional Hearing Clerk and that I caused
true and correct copies of the CAFO to be sent via Cettified Mail, Return Receipt Requested and
electronic mail to:

Hamilton Hackney, Esq.
Dain, Torpy, Le Ray, Wiest & Garner, P.C.
745 Atlantic Avenue, 5% Floor
Boston, MA 02111

P
. S T S e
Dﬁ}é / Douglas Frankenthaler
: Assistant Regional Counsel
U.S. Environmental Protection
Agency, Region 111




